FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 11/14/2019 BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

97854-9

FILED Court of Appeals Division I State of Washington 11/13/2019 1:41 PM

COURT OF APPEALS NO. 78595-8-I IN THE COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION I OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

HUGH F. BANGASSER, an individual; and ELIZABETH B. HALL, an individual

Respondents,

v.

THOMAS F. BANGASSER, an individual; BANGASSER & ASSOCIATES, INC., a Washington corporation,

Appellants,

and

VISION VASHON, ostensibly a Washington non-profit corporation

Defendant.

RAP 13.4 PETITION FOR REVIEW

Issues Presented for Review		
Conflict with Equal Access to Justice order of the Supreme Court	3	
Significant question of law under both US and State Constitution	3	
Substantial Public Interest	3	
Statement of the Case	4	
Argument	7	
Conclusion	7	
Appendix		
A - Supreme Court of Washington Order No. 25700-B-567		
B – Access To Justice Technology Principles No. 25700-B-		
C - Access To Justice Statement of Principles and Goals		
D - Court of Appeals Unpublished Opinion No. 78595-8-I		

**PETITIONER**: Thomas F. Bangasser, Appellant

CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

This petition addresses the Unpublished Opinion of Division I of the Court of Appeals

Case No. 78595-8-I filed October 14, 2019 (consolidated with No. 78670-9-I). This

opinion is attached as Appendix D.

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

<u>First</u>, Equal Access to Justice is a basic fundamental right under the Constitutions

of the United States and the State of Washington.

Second, the Supreme Court Order No. 25700-B-567 filed March 4, 2016 directs

equal access to justice. The Appeals Court failed to address the prejudicial "Game of

Courts" and conflicts of interest by the "Super Lawyers" representing the two

Respondents.

Third, the real estate owned by MidTown Limited Partnership is of substantial

public interest since this African American community has been effectively gentrified out

of their historic neighborhood and were denied a "seat at the table" of economic

opportunity. Thomas was deprived his rights under the MidTown contract to sale/gift a

partnership interest to this black community plus the opportunity to payoff the

outstanding promissory notes by December 31, 2015 which is the subject of this

litigation.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case is just a part of the much larger MidTown Limited Partnership litigations which only now are being tied together thus reflecting the role and impact played by the multilayered legal profession in its segregation of King County's African American community. The special conflicts of interest by members of the Washington State Bar Association are now becoming apparent. Without access to legal and financial resources by Thomas, there has been no justice.

On December 22, 2014 the African American community made a \$30 million dollar offer to purchase the MidTown Center, the largest undeveloped city block located in the heart of Seattle's historically black neighborhood. That offer was significantly higher than the May 23, 2017 offer finally accepted by Margaret, Hugh, Carol and Elizabeth. MidTown however rejected the AfricaTown offer.

On June 22, 2015 Thomas was removed as MidTown's General Partner through a hostile takeover by litigator Hugh (WSBA #3055). Hugh had no experience in either running a business or commercial real estate. Thomas was the only family member with both business and commercial real estate experience. Under Thomas's stewardship, the MidTown value had grown from \$900K in 1988 to more than \$30 million in 2015.

At the time of his removal, Thomas owned 12 partnership units (a 21.4% partnership interest) with a market value for his interest of approximately \$4.7 million dollars plus another \$1.5 million in deferred compensation. The MidTown partnership contract required either full payment within 30 days or an installment sale with a 10% (\$620,000) down payment and the remaining balance over three years plus 12% interest. The down payment was more than adequate to retire any balances on the three

outstanding promissory notes to Thomas's siblings plus any accrued interest. The referenced December 2015 MidTown correspondence between Thomas and the partners was intended to identify and settle all outstanding family accounts. Thomas, having been removed at General Partner, had chosen to be totally cash out.

Instead of making the payments, Hugh and his "Super Lawyer" friend Stephen J. Sirianni (WSBA #6957) breached the partnership contract by refused to tender payment. This team of litigators further withheld payments to Thomas's daughter Lauren. On December 12, 2015 Thomas had transferred the value of 4 of his 12 units (1/3) to Lauren.

As regarding the outstanding promissory notes: in October 2003, Thomas had guaranteed three promissory notes to: Margaret (\$100,000); Hugh (\$70,000); and Elizabeth (\$75,000) plus some additional parties. The Great American Recession of 2007 to 2009 made payment on the notes to Hugh and Elizabeth impossible while Thomas was only able to make monthly payments to Margaret and other creditors. At all MidTown meetings and in extensive partnership correspondence Thomas reflected the promissory note obligations and that the sale of his interest in MidTown would provide the funding.

By December 2015, Margaret, Hugh, Carol and Elizabeth had negotiated a secret sale of all MidTown real estate assets (i.e., a liquidation) to an undisclosed buyer, amount, terms, or even the closing date. The reference to December 2015 correspondence was to identify the outstanding principal and interest balances and to clear all accounts. In September 2015, this secrecy issue was brought to the attention of the first trial court. Their secret deal fell through but still no movement or intention to pay Thomas.

By early 2016, after a default on the MidTown outstanding bank loan, a new \$1 million dollar larger loan was secretly secured. The excess funds could have been used to

pay Thomas but instead litigators Hugh and Sirianni paid themselves and other limited partners. Their strategy was to freeze all payments to Thomas while initiating two separate "prevailing party" lawsuits against Thomas on the promissory notes: first, the Elizabeth note on July 14, 2016; and then the Hugh note on November 22, 2016 with a doubling of legal fees at excessive billing rates/expenses. A fine example "BullyLaw" by cartel members of the Washington State Bar Association. Sirianni had a conflict of interest as an officer of the court.

This Court of Appeals has now recognized the significance of MidTown since it lists (however incorrectly) the limited partners on pages 1 and 2 but ignores the interests of both Lauren and MidTown Community Land Trust (the successor to AfricaTown Community Land Trust). MidTown claims to be confused but a simple two (or three) party check would have provided their "protection". MidTown is addressed extensively on pages 3 and 4 however, void is any mention of the withheld Thomas funds.

Access to the books and records have been blocked and no accounting by MidTown (i.e. Hugh and Sirianni) of how the "charging orders" and appropriate taxation issues have been handled by either the partnership or the individuals. It should also be noted that in the other pending Court of Appeals Case #789988, fees and expenses paid to super lawyer Sirianni and his consultants exceed an additional \$2 million dollars. There is no justice here, only greed and tortious interference with the MidTown contract!

The contract specifically required arbitration for disputes but these super lawyers have found a more friendly venue in pursuing multiple summary judgments through compliant trial and appellant courts. Equal justice (truth and fairness) would have been facilitated if even those courts had benchmarked a fair market valuation, associated

listings of partners, their respective units and status as of the June 22, 2015 removal and the year-end December 31, 2015 and associated payments. Timely payment to Thomas as required by the MidTown contract would have resulted in no additional interest on the promissory notes and no legal fees/expenses beyond December 31, 2015. The Sirianni "stacked deck strategy" seems to have worked but quite dishonest.

#### **ARGUMENT**

First, equal access to justice to all persons is a basic fundamental right under both the Constitutions of the United States and State of Washington. The importance of this right is reflected in Order No. 25700-B-567 (Appendix A, B and C). Furthermore, the Washington State Bar Association was "charged with responsibility to achieve equal access to the civil justice system for those facing economic and other significant barriers". Refusal to provide oversight of this super lawyer "Game of Courts" by Sirianni (WSBA #6957) and Hugh (WSBA #3055) should be unacceptable in any court. The Washington State Bar Association failed in its oversight, and, when notified by Thomas, did nothing. Timely access to his funds to pay the promissory notes has been blocked by these lawyers and Thomas has not received equal access to justice.

#### CONCLUSION

Best summed up by Martin Luther King - "Injustice anywhere threatens justice everywhere". This Case No. 785958 should be consolidated with Case No. 789988 so that truth may be heard and fairness allowed to replace racism and greed.