FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
12/13/2019 10:39 AM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

No. 97854-9

#### SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

# Court of Appeals No. 78595-8-I COURT OF APPEALS THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION I

Hugh F. Bangasser, an individual; and Elizabeth B. Hall, an individual,

Plaintiffs/Respondents,

V.

Thomas F. Bangasser, an individual; and Bangasser & Associates, Inc., a Washington Corporation,

Defendants/Appellants.

# RESPONSE BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS HUGH F. BANGASSER AND ELIZABETH HALL

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON FOR KING COUNTY

#### I. INTRODUCTION

Respondents Hugh F. Bangasser and Elizabeth Hall, by and through their attorneys, submits this Answer pursuant to RAP 13.4(d) and respectfully requests the Supreme Court to deny discretionary review.

Thomas Bangasser's petition for review of the Court of Appeals decision against him fails to meet the required standard for discretionary review under RAP 13.4(b) because there is no substantial public interest impacted by the decision, there is no conflict among the Courts regarding the issues decided, there are no Constitutional questions involved.

Division I of the Court of Appeals, in case number 78595-8-I (consolidated with case number 78670-9-I) filed on October 14, 2019 (the "COA Decision") affirmed a Superior Court decision that authorized collection on a debt between private parties. The COA Decision addressed the charging order statute RCW 25.10.556, and determined judgment creditors were entitled to an order requiring a limited partnership to pay funds that were otherwise owed to the judgment debtor, Thomas Bangasser, directly to the judgment creditors.

#### A. There is no issue of substantial public interest involved.

RAP 13.4(b)(4) provides that a petition for review will only be accepted if it "involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be

determined by the Supreme Court." RAP 13.4(b)(4). The COA Decision arose from a private action between siblings for the collection on promissory notes. No public interests are involved.

Notably, Thomas Bangasser's petition assigns no error to the COA Decision. No argument is presented that the Court of Appeals erred by affirming the post-judgment charging and disbursement orders. Thomas Bangasser's allegation that review is appropriate because there are greater community interests at stake is devoid of any tangential relation to the COA Decision and is based on matters that are wholly outside the record.

## B. There is no conflict among the Courts.

Thomas Bangasser makes no argument that the COA Decision conflicts with any Supreme Court or Court of Appeals decision. RAP 13.4(a) and (b) cannot be satisfied.

# C. There are no issues of Constitutional law involved in the COA Decision.

RAP 13.4(3) allows discretionary review only if "a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved." RAP 13.4(3). No such significant question is presented under the COA Decision, or Thomas Bangasser's petition for review.

Thomas Bangasser was not denied access to justice. From the Superior Court stage, through the Court of Appeals, he presented his defense to the courts through counsel. All his arguments are preserved in the record, were considered, and have been rejected. He cites no procedural irregularity, and identifies no other basis for how he was denied access to justice.

Thomas Bangasser alleges a conflict of interest somehow prevented equal access to justice. The COA Decision addressed his conflict of interest argument, and rejected it. There are no significant Constitutional questions involved in this case.

# II. REQUEST FOR ATTORNEYS' FEES PURSUANT TO RAP 18.1(j)

The COA Decision awarded Respondents fees on appeal. Respondents request pursuant to RAP 18.1(j) that if Thomas Bangasser's petition for review is denied, that the Supreme Court award reasonable attorney fees and expenses to Respondents for their Answer.

#### III. CONCLUSION

Thomas Bangasser fails to address the requirements for discretionary review under RAP 13.4. His petition for review fails to cite any facts or reasonable arguments that could meet the standards set under the rule. His petition for review should therefore be denied.